FILED 12-18-2023 CLERK OF WISCONSIN COURT OF APPEALS

STATE OF WISCONSIN COURT OF APPEALS

DISTRICT II

Appeal No. 2023AP000870 CR

Circuit Court Case No. 2022CM000066

State of Wisconsin,

Plaintiff-Respondent,

v.

Alan Nathan Carroll, Jr. a/k/a U'si Ch-ab, Defendant-Appellant.

INITIAL BRIEF OF DEFENDANT-APPELLANT

APPEAL FROM A FINAL JUDGEMENT OF THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR WASHINGTON COUNTY,
HONORABLE RYAN J. HETZAL, PRESIDING

N/K/A/ U'si Ch-Ab

Special Guest as Defendant-Appellant
C/O Near 1208 Carr Place
Oshkosh, WISCONSIN

Zip-Code Exempt DMM
602 1:3 e (2) / Near [54901]
(920) 385 - 1521

statements of issues
Statement on Oral Argument and Publication 3
Statement of the case4
A. Nature of The Case 4
B. Procedural Status of the Case
C. Disposition In The Trial Court
D. Statement Of The Facts
Argument
I. OFFICER ALEXANDER GREENBERG #963 FOR THE SLINGER
POLICE DEPARTMENT, DENIED ME MY RIGHT TO DUE
PROCESS OF LAW BY DEPRIVING ME OF MY LIFE, MY
LIBERTY, AND MY AUTOMOBILE, CONTRARY TO THE U.S.
CONST. AMEND. XIV. § 1. & 2
II. ALL EVIDENCE THAT WAS USED AGAINST ME AT TRIAL
SHOULD HAVE BEEN SUPPRESSED BECAUSE THERE WAS A
VIOLATION OF MY CONSTITUTIONALLY PROTECTED RIGHT TO
BE FREE FROM THIS UNREASONABLE SEIZURE MADE BY
OFFICER ALEXANDER GREENBERG #963 FOR THE SLINGER
POLICE DEPARTMENT, DEPUTY SHERIFF NATHANIEI
SINCOULAR #464, SERGEANT HERRIGES #415, AND

	SERGEANT HOOD #416 FOR THE WASHINGTON COUNTY
	SHERIFF'S OFFICE, CONTRARY TO ARTICLE I. SEC. 11.
	TO THE WISCONSIN CONSTITUTION AND U.S. CONST.
	AMEND. IV
	III. THE TRIAL COURT AND ASSISTANT DISTRICT
	ATTORNEY JEANETTE K. CORBETT MISINTERPRET ARTICLE
	I., SECTION 2., CLAUSE 3., OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION
	AND AMENDMENT 14, SECTION 2., TO THE U.S.
	CONSTITUTION REGARDING "EXCLUDING INDIANS NOT
	TAXED." THE TRIAL COURT AND ASSISTANT DISTRICT
	ATTORNEY JEANETTE K. CORBETT COMPLETELY DISREGARDED
	"THE CONTINUING GOVERNMENT-TO-GOVERNMENT
	RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN INDIAN TRIBES AND THE UNITED
	STATES." 40
Conclusi	ion
	Cases
Arneson v	<u>. Jezwinski</u> , 225 Wis. 2d 371, 592 N.W.2d 606 (1999)

Brinegar v. United States, 338 U. S. 160, 175-176 (1949) .40

Camara v. Municipal Court, 387 U. S. 523, 387 U. S. 528 (1967)

(1975) 37
<u>United States v. Martinez-Fuerte</u> , 428 U. S. 543, 428 U. S.
556-558 (1976)
United States v. United States District Court, 407 U. S. 297,
407 U. S. 322-323 (1972)
<u>Washington v. Glucksberg</u> , 521 U. S. 702, 719 (1997) 24
<u>Zinermon v. Burch</u> , 494 U. S. 113, 125 (1990)
<u>Statutes</u>
WI Stat. 343.265(1m) 9
WI. Stat. 946.41 (1)
United States Codes
49 U.S. Code § 102(f)(2)(A)(B)
Federal Constitution Provisions
Art. I. Sec. 2. Cl. 3. "Indians Not Taxed4, 8, 9, 12,
35,37, 41, 43, 44
55,57, 41, 45, 44
State Constitution Provision
Wisconsin Art. I. Sec. 11

United States v. Brignoni-Ponce, 422 U. S. 873, 422 U. S. 878

Federal Constitutional Provisions
U.S. Const. amend. IV
U.S. Const. amend. XIV. § 1. & 2
<u>Treatises</u>
Northwest Ordinance treaty of 1787 32
Indigenous Law & Rights
American Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples
(A.D.R.I.P.)
Great Law of Peace

STATEMENTS OF ISSUES

I. Did Officer Alexander Greenberg #963 for the Slinger Police Department deny me my right to due process of law by depriving me of my life, liberty, and my own automobile contrary to the U.S. Const. Amend. XIV. § 1. & 2.?

The trial court answered "No."

The assistant district attorney answered "No."

II. Should all the evidence used against me be suppressed because of a violation of my Constitutionally protected right to be free from this unreasonable seizure, contrary to Article I. Sec. 11. to the Wisconsin Constitution and the Fourth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution? Was the trial court in error of not finding a violation under Article I. Sec. 11. to the Wisconsin Constitution and the Fourth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution in my filed "Notice of Motion to Suppress Evidence" and "Memorandum of Law in Support of Motion to Suppress Evidence?"

The trial court answered "No" to all 2 questions.

The assistant district attorney answered "No" to all 2 questions.

III. Was the trial court and Assistant District Attorney
Jeanette K. Corbett in error by misinterpreting, Article I.
Section 2. Clause 3. to the U.S. Constitution and Amendment
14, Section 2. of the U.S. Constitution, regarding "Excluding
Indians Not Taxed?" Did the trial court and Assistant District
Attorney Jeanette K. Corbett disregard "the continuing
government-to-government relationship between Indian tribes
and the United States?"

The trial court answered "No" to all 2 questions.

The assistant district attorney answered "No" to all 2 questions.

Case 2023AP000870 Brief of Appellant Filed 12-18-2023 Page 9 of 52

STATEMENT ON ORAL ARGUMENT AND PUBLICATION

- I. I will not ask for an opportunity for oral argument in this case.
- II. The issue's raised in this unlawful case are rarely discussed in the U.S. published case laws. However, the publication of your court's decision is unnecessary for now.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. NATURE OF THE CASE

On January 19th, 2022, at around 1 a.m. I, U'si Ch-ab, an Indigenous Aborigine American¹ (See. American²), mentioned in Art. I. Sec. 2. Cl. 3. as "Excluding Indians³ Not Taxed⁴," (See. Taxes⁵), to the U.S. Constitution⁶ was traveling in my automobile on public highway I-41, on my way to pick up my girlfriend and my son at the Children's Hospital near Milwaukee Wisconsin("R24:4").

^{1.} American (n.) 1570s, originally "one of the aboriginal peoples discovered in the Western Hemisphere by Europeans," from Modern Latin Americanus, from America (q.v.). The original sense is now Native Americans; the sense of "resident of North America of European (originally British) descent" is from 1765. "Etymology Dictionary"

^{2.} AMER'ICAN, noun A native of America; originally applied to the aboriginals, or coppercolored races, found here by the Europeans; but now applied to the descendants of Europeans born in America. "Webster's Dictionary 1828"

^{3.} INDIANS. The aborigines of this country are so called. "A Law Dictionary Adapted To The Constitution And Laws Of The United States Of America And Of The Several States Of The American Union by John Bouvier Revised Sixth Edition, 1856"

- 4. TAXES. This term in its most extended sense includes all contributions imposed by the government upon individuals for the service of the state, by whatever name they are called or known, whether by the name of tribute, tithe, talliage, impost, duty, gabel, custom, subsidy, aid, supply, excise, or other name. "A Law Dictionary Adapted To The Constitution And Laws Of The United States Of America And Of The Several States Of The American Union by John Bouvier Revised Sixth Edition, 1856"
- 5. [T]ax (v.) c. 1300, "impose a tax on," from Old French taxer "impose a tax" (13c.) and directly from Latin taxare "evaluate, estimate, assess, handle," also "censure, charge," probably a frequentative form of tangere "to touch," from PIE root *tag-"to touch, handle." Sense of "to burden, put a strain on" first recorded early 14c.; that of "censure, reprove" is from 1560s. Its use in Luke ii for Greek apographein "to enter on a list, enroll" is due to Tyndale. Related: Taxed; taxing. "Etymology Dictionary"
- 6. "Representatives and direct Taxes shall be apportioned among the several States which may be included within this Union, according to their respective Numbers, which shall be determined by adding to the whole Number of free Persons, including those bound to Service for a Term of Years, and excluding Indians not taxed, three fifths of all other Persons....." "Article I. Section 2. Clause 3. of the U.S. Constitution"

When I was traveling through the Village of Slinger, I looked to my right and saw Officer Greenberg parked in his squad vehicle on top of the ramp. At that moment, there wasn't any suspicious activity, there were no traffic or equipment violations being committed by other people because the public roads were clear from other travelers and other people operating motor-vehicles⁷ for commercial purposes⁸ (See also. Commerce⁹) ("R76:133 @ 15-17").

^{7. (6)} Motor vehicle. — The term "motor vehicle" means every description of carriage or other contrivance propelled or drawn by mechanical power and used for commercial purposes on the highways in the transportation of passengers, passengers and property, or property or cargo. "18 USC § 31(a)(6)"

^{8. (10)} Used for commercial purposes. — The term "used for commercial purposes" means the carriage of persons or property for any fare, fee, rate, charge or other consideration, or directly or indirectly in connection with any business, or other undertaking intended for profit. "18 USC § 31(a)(10)"

^{9.} Commerce, trade, contracts. The exchange of commodities for commodities; considered in a legal point of view, it consists in the various agreements which have for their object to facilitate the exchange of the products of the earth or industry of man, with an intent to realize a profit. Pard. Dr. Coin. n.

1. In a narrower sense, commerce signifies any reciprocal agreements between two persons, by which one delivers to the other a thing, which the latter accepts, and for which he pays a consideration; if the consideration be money, it is called a sale; if any other thing than money, it is called exchange or barter. Domat, Dr. Pub. liv. 1, tit. 7, s. 1, n. 2. Congress have power by the constitution to regulate commerce with foreign nations and among the several states, and with the Indian tribes. 1 Kent. 431; Story on Corst. 1052, et seq. The sense in which the word commerce is used in the constitution seems not only to include traffic, but intercourse and navigation. Story, 1057; 9 Wheat. 190, 191, 215, 229; 1 Tuck. Bl. App. 249 to 252. Vide 17 John. R. 488; 4 John. Ch. R. 150; 6 John. Ch. R. 300; 1 Halst. R. 285; Id. 236; 3 Cowen R. 713; 12 Wheat. R. 419; 1 Brock. R. 423; 11 Pet. R. 102; 6 Cowen, R. 169; 3 Dana, R. 274; 6 Pet. R. 13 S. & R. 205. "A Law Dictionary Adapted To The Constitution And Laws Of The United States Of America And Of The Several States Of The American Union by John Bouvier Revised Sixth Edition, 1856"

As soon as my automobile and I passed Officer Greenberg, he puts his squad vehicle in drive to catch up to me. When Officer Greenberg caught up to me, he stayed behind me for a couple seconds and then he controlled his squad vehicle onto the left lane, as if to pass me by, but he stayed there, at

least one car length behind me for a few more seconds until Officer Greenberg controlled his squad vehicle back onto the right lane, just to get behind me again. When Officer Greenberg seen my automobile's Indigenous Aborigine American plates, which states directly in the Constitution, "Art. I. Sec. 2. Cl. 3. "Indians Not Taxed" "Aboriginal Americans," that's when Officer Greenberg made the unlawful traffic stop. ("R24:4 @ ¶2").

Officer Greenberg wanted to see if I had any U.S. state license plate for him to run, or if he could observe any traffic violation like lane deviation, speed, etc. Officer Greenberg was looking for any reason to conduct a random and unlawful traffic stop ("R76:133 @ 7-15").

While I was unlawfully stopped by Officer Greenberg, he approached the guest side of my automobile and stated that the only reason he made the traffic stop was because I do not have a registration plate on my automobile. Then Officer Greenberg started demanding State driver's license, registration and the legal fiction named: "ALAN N. CARROLL JR." Many times I refused Officer Greenberg's unlawful demands and many times I challenged Officer Greenberg's unlawful actions, by asking him what reasonable articulable suspicion he had against me to pull me over and his answer was that I

do not have any State registration plates on my automobile and that was allegedly illegal. I asked Officer Greenberg for his full name, badge number, I informed him he was being recorded by my dash cam device, and I asked Officer Greenberg if he honored his oath to support and defend the U.S. Constitution ("R24:5 @ ¶3").

I requested Officer Greenberg's supervisor, someone with more experience, to come to the scene. Greenberg dispatched on my request. While I waited, Officer Greenberg did not want to hear the truth about what my Indigenous Aborigine American automobile plates mean through Constitutional law "Art. I. Sec. 2. Cl. 3." "Indians Not Taxed" "Aboriginal Americans." Officer Greenberg did not want to hear the truth when I invoked my title and my identity as an Indigenous Aborigine American. Officer Greenberg did not care to hear the truth about my efforts in renouncing U.S. citizenship (See. Citizen¹⁰), renouncing the Wisconsin State i.d./driver's license (See. WI Stat. 343.265(1m)11). Officer Greenberg did not want to hear the truth about this State dmv destroying the plates I had renounced, and when I invoked my constitutional right to travel through 49 U.S. Code § 102(f)(2)(A)(B)¹², Officer Greenberg ignored it. All Officer Greenberg wanted to know was why I wasn't meeting his unlawful

demands, including my right not to consent to exit my automobile. ("R41:1 @ 6:17 - 10:50").

10. Citizens, persons. 3. All natives are not citizens of the United States; the descendants of the [American] aborigines... are not entitled to the rights of citizens. "A Law Dictionary Adapted To The Constitution And Laws Of The United States Of America And Of The Several States Of The American Union by John Bouvier Revised Sixth Edition, 1856"

11. WI. Stat. 343.265 Voluntary surrender and reissuance after surrender (1m). The department may accept the voluntary surrender of the operator's license of a person who no longer intends to exercise the privilege of operating a vehicle class or type authorized by that license, if the person's operating privilege is not subject to suspension or revocation for any reason. The department may issue a license under sub. (2), omitting the authorizations to operate a vehicle class or type that the person has relinquished.

12. 49 U.S. Code § 102 - Department of Transportation. (f) Office of Tribal Government Affairs. (2) Reservation of trust obligations. - (A) Responsibility of secretary. - In carrying out this title, the Secretary shall be responsible to exercise the trust obligations of the United States to Indians and Indian tribes to ensure that the rights of a tribe or individual Indian

are protected. (B) Preservation of united states responsibility.

-Nothing in this title shall absolve the United States from any responsibility to Indians and Indian tribes, including responsibilities derived from the trust relationship and any treaty, executive order, or agreement between the United States and an Indian tribe.

Deputy Sheriff Nathaniel Sincoular #464 along with Sergeant Herriges #415 and Sergeant Hood #416, for the Washington County Sheriff's Office arrived at the scene and immediately sided with Officer Greenberg without even hearing my side of the truth in this unlawful case. Deputy Sheriff Sincoular mentioned that I was detained for refusing to identify. Officer Greenberg also laid down spikes in the front and the back of my automobile tires, so I wasn't free to leave ("R76:113 @ 15 - 25"). I rebutted Deputy Sheriff Sincoular's claim that I was detained by stating that I was unlawfully detained because Officer Greenberg had no articulable reasonable suspicion, no probable cause or a warrant to conduct a random traffic stop against me. Deputy Sheriff Sincoular mentioned that none of that was necessary for Officer Greenberg to conduct a valid traffic stop. Again, I immediately rebutted Deputy Sheriff Sincoular's false claim by stating that articulable reasonable suspicion, probable cause and/or a warrant is necessary for a traffic stop. Deputy Sincoular confirmed his oath to honor and support the U.S. Constitution. After that, I had the same conversation as I did with Officer Greenberg and again, Deputy Sheriff Sincoular did not want to hear the truth on what my Indigenous Aborigine American automobile plates mean through Constitutional law "Art. I. Sec. 2. Cl. 3." "Indians Not Taxed" "Aboriginal Americans." Deputy Sheriff Sincoular did not want to hear the truth when I invoked my title and my identity as an Indigenous Aborigine American. Deputy Sheriff Sincoular did not care to hear the truth about my efforts in renouncing U.S. citizenship, renouncing the Wisconsin State i.d./driver's license. Deputy Sheriff Sincoular did not want to hear the truth about this State dmv destroying the plates I had renounced, and when I invoked my right to travel through 49 U.S. Code § 102(f)(2)(A)(B), Deputy Sheriff Sincoular ignored it. ("R41:1 @ 10:51 - 15:25").

Officer Greenberg would approach the guest side of my automobile and threaten to damage my automobile by breaking the glass door windows and injuring my physical body by dragging me out of the broken glass door window if I did not provide him with the corporate fiction named: "ALAN N. CARROLL

JR." After I refused his verbal threats towards me, Officer Greenberg broke into the interior of my automobile by inserting his hand through the small space of the window and unlocked my door from the inside. Officer Greenberg then aims his Electronic Control Weapon (ECW) taser gun to my face, coerced¹³ me to exit my automobile and at that very moment I was handcuffed ("R41:1 @ 15:26 - 25:47").

13. COERCION, criminal law, contracts. Constraint; compulsion; force. 2. It is positive or presumed. 1. Positive or direct coercion takes place when a man is by physical force compelled to do an act contrary to his will; for example, when a man falls into the hands of the enemies of his country, and they compel him, by a just fear of death, to fight against it. "A Law Dictionary Adapted To The Constitution And Laws Of The United States Of America And Of The Several States Of The American Union by John Bouvier Revised Sixth Edition, 1856"

Lastly, I was unlawfully frisked, my wallet was stolen and searched for a State I.D. When Officer Greenberg did not find a State I.D. in my wallet, he searched through my wallet for some old cards that had the corporate fiction name imprinted on them: "ALAN N. CARROLL JR." ("R:2 @ p.2."). I was kidnapped14 to Officer Greenberg's work vehicle to be

falsely imprisoned at the Washington County Jail for over 24 hours ("R77:23 @ 13 - 17"). I was unlawfully charged with WI. Stat. 946.41 (1) 15 - Resist/Obstructing an Officer WI and traffic violations. My automobile was stolen and stored at the Ackerville Towing & Service in the Village of Slinger, WI. ("R24:7-8 ¶7 & ¶8").

14. 18 U.S. Code § 1201 - Kidnapping. (a) Whoever unlawfully seizes, confines, inveigles, decoys, kidnaps, abducts, or carries away and holds for ransom or reward or otherwise any person, except in the case of a minor by the parent thereof, when— (1) the person is willfully transported in interstate or foreign commerce, regardless of whether the person was alive when transported across a State boundary, or the offender travels in interstate or foreign commerce or uses the mail or any means, facility, or instrumentality of interstate or foreign commerce in committing or in furtherance of the commission of the offense;

15. WI. Stat. 946.41 Resisting or obstructing officer. (1) Whoever knowingly resists or obstructs an officer while such officer is doing any act in an official capacity and with lawful authority, is guilty of a Class A misdemeanor.

B. PROCEDURAL STATUS OF THE CASE

On January $19^{\rm th}$, 2022, a criminal complaint was filed against me (R2:1-2). This unlawful case was first heard in

front of magistrate James G. Puros. I appeared in court via video conference, handcuffed and shackled against my own free will. James G. Puros would rule that allegedly there was probable cause for Officer Alexander Greenberg #963 to deny my right to due process of law by depriving me of my life as an Indigenous Aborigine American, depriving me of my protected right and liberty to travel on my ancestral lands now known as public highway I-41, and I was deprived of my own automobile, which I was traveling in (See. "R41:1 @ 1:03-3:25"). Assistant District Attorney Alyssa Schaller asked for a cash bail of 150 U.S. bank notes, I asked for a signature bond, and James G. Puros set bail at 750 U.S. bank notes ("R71:3 - 10"). My mother bailed me out of Washington County jail on January 20th, 2022 (Washington County Sheriff's Dept. Receipt #: 14108) and I bailed my automobile out of the Ackerville Towing Services for 205.73 U.S. bank notes (Invoice #: 11922J1).

I created a "Notice of Motion to Suppress Evidence" with a "Memorandum of Law in Support of Motion to Suppress Evidence," filed on January 5th, 2023. One ground to this motion was that Officer Alexander Greenberg #963 for the Slinger Village Police Department, Deputy Sincoular #464, Sergeant Herriges #415, and Sergeant Hood #416 for the

Washington County Sheriff Department knowingly violated Article I. Sec. 11. to the Wisconsin Constitution and the Fourth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution ("R24:2 @II."). In ground II., I argued that all evidence used against me at jury trial should be suppressed because Officer Alexander Greenberg #963, Deputy Sincoular #464, Sergeant Herriges #415, and Sergeant Hood #416 knowingly violated my right to be free from their unreasonable seizure towards me and my automobile and invaded on my right to keep the corporate fiction name: "ALAN N. CARROLL JR." private from them and private from the rest of the world ("R24:26 - 32 @ II.").

My "Notice of Motion to Suppress Evidence" with a "Memorandum of Law in Support of Motion to Suppress Evidence" would be heard at an unlawful jury status hearing on the day of January 18th, 2023. Magistrate Ryan J. Hetzal would deny my motion to suppress all evidence and treat that as a "Motion in Limine" for the up-and-coming jury trial. Assistant District Attorney Jeanette K. Corbett was prohibited from using my right to refuse to identify myself based on Ryan J. Hetzal's finding in my motion to suppress all evidence through: "Henes v. Morrissey, 194 Wis. 2d 338, 533 N.W.2d 802 (Wis. 1995)" ("R24:14 @ ¶22").

Magistrate Ryan J. Hetzal would unlawfully grant Assistant District Attorney Jeanette K. Corbett the ability to use my refusal to exit my automobile as new evidence for trial against me. Based on the new evidence, I immediately argued that Officer Greenberg lacked reasonable articulable suspicion and probable cause to conduct a random traffic stop. Magistrate Ryan J. Hetzal would unlawfully make a finding that the Officer's involved in this case had reasonable articulable suspicion and probable cause to conduct a random traffic stop solely to check to see if I had any driver's license and registration plates on my automobile. I argued that his findings in this unlawful case conflicted with the United States Supreme court decision in "Delaware v. Prouse, 440 U.S. 648 (1979)" and "Terry v. Ohio, 392 U.S. 1, 88 S. Ct. 1868 (1968)." Magistrate Ryan J. Hetzal would also make an unlawful finding that I was supposedly required to display registration plates when Ι already arqued that the i.d./driver's license and registration plates rightfully renounced ("R79:12 @ 5 - 25 & R79:13 @ 1 - 22").

Lastly, on March 15th, 2023, magistrate Ryan J. Hetzal would state his misinterpretation of Article I. Section 2. Clause 3. regarding "Excluding Indians Not Taxed," to the United States Constitution and U.S. Const. Amend. XIV.

Section 1. & 2. of the United States Constitution, on the day that I was unlawfully sentenced. Magistrate Ryan J. Hetzal would state on the record that Article I. Section 2. Clause 3. to the U.S. Constitution is supposedly a "voting rights clause." Ryan J. Hetzal continues his misinterpretation by stating that I'm a U.S. citizen under and Assistant District Attorney Jeanette K. Corbett agreed ("R77:14 - 16 @ ¶16").

C. DISPOSITION IN THE TRIAL COURT

On February 7th, 2023, an all-white jury of European descent would find me guilty of allegedly obstructing Officer Greenberg contrary to WI. Stat. 946.41(1) based on the new evidence that magistrate Ryan J. Hetzal granted to District Attorney Jeanette K. Corbett, which was my refusal to exit my own automobile ("R76:214 @ 5-9).

On March 15th, 2023, magistrate Ryan J. Hetzal would order that I pay a fine of 1,713 bank notes. Magistrate Ryan J. Hetzal would also order that I pay 100 per month until the fine is paid in full ("R77:21 @ 3-24).

D. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The facts most related to the issues presented for review in this brief are mainly in "R10:1-5", "R24:1-32", "R41:1-1", "R49:1-30", "R50:1-3", "R76:1-223", and "R77:1-24."

Fact #1: Officer Greenberg neglected his own procedures by waiting for me and my automobile to pass him so that he could chase me down and find any reason to conduct a random traffic stop thus depriving me of all my Indigenous Aborigine American rights and liberties ("R41:1-1 @ 0:00-2:20"). Also, Officer Greenberg admits to not having any real objective before putting his squad vehicle in drive to catch up to me ("R76:133 @ 2 - 6").

Fact: #2: The evidence that was used against me at trial should have been suppressed because Officer Greenberg and his actions towards me and my automobile were unreasonable ("R24:26-32"). Since Officer Grenberg didn't have any objectives to chase after me, he lacked probable cause and reasonable articulable suspicion to conduct a random traffic stop, and Officer Greenberg admitted that the only reason why he controlled his squad vehicle back behind my automobile was to check to see if my automobile had registered plates from any State DMV ("R76:134 @ 2-5").

Fact #3: With all of the evidence that me and the Iroquois Confederacy of Aborigine American Peoples (I.C.A.A.P.) has presented in my support, magistrate Ryan J. Hetzal and Assistant District Attorney Jeanette K. Corbett is still unable to be a little enlightened when it comes to us

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