Filed 01-18-2024

8-2024 Page 1 of 17

FILED 01-18-2024 CLERK OF WISCONSIN COURT OF APPEALS

# STATE OF WISCONSIN COURT OF APPEALS

DISTRICT II

Case No. 2023AP000870

WASHINGTON COUNTY

Plaintiff-Respondent,

v.

ALAN NATHAN CARROLL, JR. a/k/a U'si Ch-ab Defendant-Appellant

APPEAL FROM A FINAL JUDGEMENT OF THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR WASHINGTON COUNTY, HONORABLE RYAN J. HETZEL

#### BRIEF OF THE PLAINTIFF-RESPONDENT

JEANETTE K. CORBETT Assistant District Attorney State Bar Number 1033978

Attorney for Plaintiff-Respondent

Washington County District Attorney Post Office Box 1986 West Bend, WI 53095-7986 (262) 335-4311 (Phone) (262) 335-4739 (Fax) Jeanette.Corbett@da.wi.gov

Page 2 of 17

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

#### **ARGUMENT**

### I. This Court should affirm the circuit court decision because Carroll failed to adequately brief his claims.

The State can find no discernable argument presented on appeal by the defendant. The Brief of Appellant was filed pro se by Carroll and contains numerous references to items not contained in the record. Throughout the defendant's brief he refers to his opinions, beliefs and definitions which are not contained in the record of this case. These statements cannot now be considered as evidence in this case. Carroll's entire Appendix of the Defendant-Appellant contains items not included in the record and items that are completely irrelevant to the facts presented. The appellant must include "portions of the record essential to an understanding of the issues raised" in his appendix. Wis. Stat. § (Rule) 809.19(2). A party may not include nonrecord items in appendices to supplement the record. See, e.g. Forman v. McPherson, 2004 WI App 145, ¶6, n.4, 275 Wis. 2d 604, 685 N.W.2d 603. Even though a party is pro se, they must still comply will the rules

Case 2023AP000870 Brief of Respondent Filed 01-18-2024 Page 11 of 17

of procedure. This Court is not required to search through an Appellant's brief in order to locate arguments. See State v. Pettit, 171 Wis.2d 627, 642, 492 N.W.2d 633 (Ct.App.1992). Citing Rule 809.83(2), of the Wisconsin Statutes, the court in Pettit stated specifically, "We cannot serve as both advocate and judge." Id. Courts have applied this rule to pro se litigants. "While some leniency may be allowed, neither a trial court nor a reviewing court has a duty to walk pro se litigants through the procedural requirements or to point them to the proper substantive law." Waushara County v. Graf, 166 Wis.2d 442, 452, 480 N.W.2d 16, 20 (1992).

None of Carroll's numerous factual assertions are supported by a citation to the record, which violates Wis. Stat. § (Rule) 809.19(1)(d) and (e). (See Carroll's Br. 1-52.) Carroll's failure to provide or cite to appropriate material alone should dispose of this appeal. State v. Pettit, 171 Wis. 2d 627, 646, 492 N.W.2d 633 (Ct. App. 1992).

The only record Carroll cites to within his brief is testimony taken from the jury trial. Therefore, it is unclear if his argument is related to suppression of the evidence or to the jury verdict itself. However there is no argument that the State could find that the jury verdict should be overturned. The jury in this case left the courtroom to begin deliberations at 4:51 pm and returned with a verdict of guilty at 4:58 pm. (February 7, 2023 R. P. 212: 4 - P. 213: 6). There is no questions that the evidence presented at the trial was sufficient for the guilty verdict. Additionally, because there is no argument contained within Carroll's brief regarding overturning the jury verdict, Carroll clearly has not reached the high burden necessary for this Court to overturn the jury verdict.

Case 2023AP000870 Brief of Respondent Filed 01-18-2024 Page 12 of 17

#### II. Officer Greenberg Did Not Deny Carroll Due Process of Law

The only possible argument the State can construe from Carroll's appellate brief is that believes the laws of Wisconsin do not apply to him and therefore, Officer Greenberg had no reasonable Carroll's vehicle suspicion to stop subsequently, no reason to ask him to identify himself and to exit the vehicle. Carroll somehow believes that this resulted in him being denied his due process of law. (Carroll's Brief P. 20). Carroll argues that Officer Greenberg "denied me my right to due process of law by depriving me of my life, my liberty and my automobile contrary to the U. S. Const. Amend. XIV. Section 1. & 2. (Carroll's Brief P. 20). Carroll alleges "when Officer Greenberg seen my automobile's Indigenous Aborigine American plates, which states directly in the Constitution, 'Art. I, Sec. 2. Cl. 3. 'Indians Not Taxed 'Aboriginal American,' that's when Officer Greenberg made the unlawful traffic stop." (Carroll's Brief P. 8). Carroll that he had renounced his Wisconsin state asserts identification and driver's license and therefore had a "constitutional right to travel through 49 U.S. Code" which Officer Greenberg ignored. (Carroll's Brief P. 9).

Carroll's argument relating to his right to due process is wholly unsubstantiated and has no basis in law. Carroll fails to provide any case law that supports his assertation that his due process were violated by the officers conducting a traffic stop on the interstate. "Some people believe with great fervor preposterous things that just happen to coincide with their self-interest." *Coleman v. Commissioner of Internal Revenue*, 791 F.2d 68, 69 (7th Cir. 1986). *See also SEC v. Chenery Corp.*, 332 U.S. 194, 214 (Jackson, J., dissenting) ("I give up. Now I realize fully what Mark Twain meant when he said, "The more you explain it, the more I don't understand it").

Case 2023AP000870 Brief of Respondent Filed 01-18-2024 Page 13 of 17

Carroll was clearly given his due process of law. Carroll filed and argued numerous motions to the circuit court and ultimately had a jury trial in which he was found guilty of the charged offense. (Index of circuit court activity). Carroll wrongly confuses due process rights with his ability to operate his motor vehicle on a highway without any driver's license or registration plates. Carroll argues that his "automobile was stolen" in violation Section. Three: Cultural Identity. Art.. XIII because he is apparently classified as an indigenous people and therefore his vehicle was "spiritual property taken without [our] free, prior, and informed consent or in violation of [our] laws, traditions, and customs". (Carroll's Brief P. 26).

Carroll's assertion that the laws of the State of Wisconsin do not apply to him appear to be rooted in his belief that he is an "Aborigine American" and therefore, according to Carroll, under Article I of the US Constitution, he is immune from the laws of not only the State of Wisconsin but of the entire United States of America. This argument is entirely nonsensical and bears no basis in fact or law. Article I of the US Constitution establishes how to apportion representatives to Congress and has absolutely nothing to do with the rights of individuals nor does it grant any person titles or immunity from the criminal law of the States.

This argument is ludicrous. The Fourteenth Amendment states clearly that "All persons born or naturalized in the United States and subject to the jurisdiction thereof, are citizens of the United States and of the State wherein they reside." U.S. Const. amend. XIV, § 1. There is no basis in the argument that Carroll is somehow relieved of being subject to the criminal laws of the State of Wisconsin, nor to the jurisdiction of its courts. Wis. Const. art. VII, § 8; Wis. Stat. §§ 753.03, 939.03.

## III. The Circuit Court did Not Err in Failing to Suppress all the Evidence and Dismiss the Complaint.

To conduct an investigatory stop, a law enforcement officer must reasonably suspect, in light of the officer's experience, that some sort of criminal activity is occurring. See State v. Richardson, 156 Wis. 2d 128, 139, 456 N.W.2d 830 (1990). To determine whether a stop is supported by reasonable suspicion, the Court of Appeals considers whether "specific and articulable facts which, taken together with rational inferences from those facts, reasonably warrant' the intrusion of the stop." State v. Post, 2007 WI 60, ¶ 10, 301 Wis. 2d 1, 733 N.W.2d 634 (quoted sources omitted). "The reasonableness of a stop is determined based upon the totality of the facts and circumstances" in the case. Post, 2007 WI 60 at ¶ 13.

The question presented is whether the facts and circumstances of the case would warrant a reasonable law enforcement officer, in light of the officer's training and experience, "to suspect that the individual has committed, was committing, or is about to commit a crime." *Id.* "[R]easonable suspicion that a non-traffic-related law has been broken may also justify a traffic stop." *State v. Iverson*, 2015 WI 101, ¶ 52, 365 Wis. 2d 302, 871 N.W.2d 661 (quoted source omitted). The State has the burden of establishing that an investigative stop was reasonable. *State v. Taylor*, 60 Wis. 2d 506, 519, 210 N.W.2d 873 (1973).

Carroll asserts that evidence should have been suppressed as a result of an unreasonable seizure of his person. (Carroll's Brief 1.) Carroll seems to argue that the traffic stop was unlawful and therefore the evidence should have been suppressed. (Carroll's Brief 7.)

In the State of Wisconsin, operators of vehicles are required to display registration plates on their vehicles and the failure to do so properly can result in the issuance of a Case 2023AP000870 Brief of Respondent Filed 01-18-2024 Page 15 of 17

citation. See Wisconsin Statutes section 341.15(2) (3). It has long been established that operating "an automobile upon the public highways is not a right, but only a privilege which the state may grant or withhold at pleasure." *State v. Stehlek*, 262 Wis. 642, 646, 56 N.W.2d 514 (1953). Here, Officer Greenberg observed Carroll traveling on a public interstate in a vehicle that did not bear any registration plates, as is required by section 341.15(2) (3) and therefore, Officer Greenberg had reasonable suspicion to stop the vehicle based on the driver's violation of that statute.

The Honorable Ryan J. Hetzel correctly found that Carroll was required to display a registration plate on his vehicle, pursuant to state statute and therefore, because Carroll failed to comply with that law, there was reasonable suspicion for that traffic stop. (January 18, 2023 R. 12: 24 – 13: 17.) Clearly the circuit court's ruling in this respect was correct as Wisconsin Statutes section 341.15(2) (3) requires operators of vehicles to display registration plates and the failure to do so properly can result in the issuance of a citation. Following the lawful stop of the defendant officers did not obtain any evidence for which the court could The court found that evidence relating to the suppress. defendant's failure to identify himself was not relevant to the crime of obstructing an officer and therefore the court suppressed any mention of that failure during the trial. (January 18, 2023 R. 14: 6-11.) The State objected to this finding however determined that an appeal of the circuit court's decision in that respect was not in the interest of judicial economy.

Case 2023AP000870 Brief of Respondent Filed 01-18-2024 Page 16 of 17

#### **CONCLUSION**

For the foregoing reasons, this Court should affirm the circuit court's finding of guilt as to both charges.